

# Uterine artery embolisation for treatment of fibroids

## **Radiology Department**

**Patient Information Leaflet** 

#### What is fibroid embolisation?

Fibroids are non-cancerous growths that develop in or around the womb (uterus). Fibroid embolisation is a way of treating fibroids by blocking the arteries (blood vessels) that feed the fibroids (uterine arteries), making the fibroids shrink. It is an effective alternative to an operation. Fibroid embolisation was first performed in 1995 and since then tens of thousands of women have had the procedure worldwide.

#### Why do I need fibroid embolisation?

Your gynaecologist will have told you about fibroids and discussed treatment options with you. Previously, most fibroids have been treated by an operation to remove them individually (myomectomy) or by hysterectomy. In your case, it has been decided that embolisation is a suitable treatment option.

#### Who will be doing the procedure?

The procedure will be carried out by a specially trained doctor called an interventional radiologist. They have special expertise in using

X-ray-guided techniques and are the best trained people to carry out this procedure.

#### What happens before the procedure?

You will be seen at an outpatient appointment by the consultant interventional radiologist who will go through the procedure in detail. You will also have an MRI scan to determine whether your fibroids are suitable for treatment by embolisation.

On the day of the procedure, you will need to be an inpatient as you will need to stay overnight. You will be asked not to eat for six hours beforehand.

A urinary catheter will be placed into your bladder by a nurse. You need to have a small needle put into a vein in your arm for antibiotics, sedative and painkillers to be given. You will also be given an anti-inflammatory suppository (a bullet-shaped tablet designed to put in your back passage/anus).

You will have a special painkiller injection device attached to you so that you can give yourself safe doses of painkillers after the procedure by pressing a button.

#### What happens during fibroid embolisation?

The procedure will take place in the X-ray department and you will lie flat on your back. You will have a monitoring device attached to your finger, and may be given oxygen. In the majority of cases an anaesthetist will be present to give you sedation and keep you comfortable. Then your groin will be swabbed with antiseptic and most of the rest of your body will be covered with a theatre towel to keep everything as sterile as possible.

Local anaesthetic will be injected in the skin in your groin and a needle will be inserted into the artery (in the majority of cases both groins are used), then a fine plastic tube called a catheter is placed into the artery. The interventional radiologist uses X-ray equipment to guide the catheter into the arteries which are feeding the fibroids. A special X-ray dye, called contrast, is injected down the catheter into these uterine arteries, and this may give you a hot feeling in your pelvis.

Fluid containing thousands of tiny particles is injected through the catheter into these arteries to block them. Then the catheter is removed and pressure is applied to the groin to stop bleeding.

#### Will it hurt?

As the local anaesthetic is injected, it will sting initially, but this passes. You may develop cramp-like pelvic pain toward the end of the procedure but this is treated with intravenous (into a vein) painkillers.

#### How long will it take?

Every patient's situation is different but, as a guide, expect to be in the X-ray department for about two hours.

#### What happens afterwards?

Nurses on the ward will carry out routine observations. They will also look at the skin entry point to make sure there is no bleeding. You will need to stay in bed for at least six hours. You will be kept in hospital overnight and discharged the next day.

Once at home you should not do strenuous exercise for about a week. It is advised that you take two weeks off work. You should use pads rather than tampons for at least six months after embolisation to help prevent the risk of infection. Also, you should avoid becoming pregnant for at least one year after embolisation.

### What are the risks or complications?

Fibroid embolisation is a safe procedure but as with any medical procedure, there are some risks and complications that can arise.

Occasionally a small bruise may develop in your groin at the needle entry site. Most patients feel some pain afterwards that can range from very mild to severe, cramp-like pain (similar to period pain). It is generally worst in the first 12 hours and can be controlled by painkillers. Most patients get a slight fever after the procedure which can last for up to 10 days. This is a good sign as it means that the fibroid is breaking down. The painkillers help control this fever.

Vaginal discharge can occur afterwards, and may be bloody, due to the fibroid breaking down. This can last for up to two weeks or can be intermittent for several months. It may take a few months for you to go back to a regular menstrual cycle.

If the discharge starts to smell and look unusual, and if you have a fever as well, there is the possibility of infection so you should ask to see your gynaecologist urgently or call the gynaecology nurse on 01384 244584.

The most serious complication of fibroid embolisation is infection. This happens to about one in every 100 women. It can cause severe pain, pelvic tenderness and a high temperature, with or without unusual vaginal discharge. If you experience these symptoms, contact the gynaecology nurse on the above number or if you cannot get through, go to the nearest accident and emergency department.

Mild infection can be treated with antibiotics or a 'D and C' (dilatation and curettage) procedure. In severe cases, an operation to remove the womb may be necessary but this is extremely rare.

There is a four per cent chance that the embolisation procedure will lead to premature menopause. This occurs usually in women who are 45 years or older.

#### What are the results of embolisation?

The vast majority of women (approximately 85 to 90 per cent of women) are pleased with the results, reporting a significant improvement in their quality of life. By one year after the procedure, most fibroids shrink to about half their size resulting in significant improvement in both heavy, prolonged periods and symptoms relating to pressure. Once fibroids have been treated like this, generally they do not grow back again. As mentioned above infection occurs in one per cent of women. Approximately three per cent of women will need a hysterectomy at some stage after embolisation, either due to infection, or because symptoms of bleeding or pressure do not go away.

Some women, who could not become pregnant before the procedure because of their fibroids, become pregnant afterwards. However, with embolization there is a four per cent risk of premature menopause; therefore, if having a baby in the future is very important to you, you need to discuss this with your consultant as it may be that an operation such as myomectomy is still a better choice.

If you have any questions or concerns, or if there is anything you do not understand about this leaflet, please contact:

The gynaecology nurses on 01384 244584 or Dr S Latif (consultant interventional radiologist)'s secretary, Jayne Hyde on 01384 456111 ext. 2386

#### This leaflet can be downloaded or printed from:

http://dgft.nhs.uk/services-and-wards/radiology

If you have any feedback on this patient information leaflet, please email dgft.patient.information@nhs.net

This leaflet can be made available in large print, audio version and in other languages, please call 0800 073 0510.

للحصول على هذه النشرة بحجم أكبر، وعلى شكل إصدار صوتي و بلغات أخرى، الرجاء الاتصال بالرقم 08000730510.

此宣传单可提供大字版本、音频版本和其它语言版本,请拨打电话: 0800 073 0510。

Ulotka dostępna jest również w dużym druku, wersji audio lub w innym języku. W tym celu zadzwoń pod numer 0800 073 0510.

ਇਹ ਪਰਚਾ ਵੱਡੇ ਅੱਖਰਾਂ, ਬੋਲ ਕੇ ਰੀਕਾਰਡ ਕੀਤਾ ਹੋਇਆ ਅਤੇ ਦੂਸਰੀਆਂ ਭਾਸ਼ਾਵਾਂ ਵਿਚ ਵੀ ਪ੍ਰਾਪਤ ਹੋ ਸਕਦਾ ਹੈ, 0800 073 0510 ਤੇ ਫੋਨ ਕਰੋ ਜੀ।

Aceasta brosura poate fi pusa la dispozitie tiparita cu caractere mari, versiune audio sau in alte limbi, pentru acest lucru va rugam sunati la 0800 073 0510.

یہ کتابچہ آپ کو بڑے حروف کی لکھائی ، سمعی صورت اور دیگر زبانوں میں مہیا کیا جا سکتا ہےبرائے مہربانی فون نمبر 08000730510پر رابطہ کریں۔

Originator: Dr S Latif. Date originated: January 2015. Date reviewed: February 2021. Next review date: November 2023. Version: 3. DGH ref: DGH/PIL/00298.